
 

 
- 1 - 

 
 

CARDIFF COUNCIL 
CYNGOR CAERDYDD 

 

 
 
 

CABINET: DYDD MERCHER, 13 IONAWR 2021 am 2.00 PM 
 

 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod Cabinet ar ffurf Neuadd y Sir Ddydd Mercher, 13 Ionawr 2021 am 2.00 pm 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
Cyllid, Moderneiddio a Pherfformiad   
 
1   Diweddariad Modelu Cyllideb 2021/22 a Gofynion Ymgynghori  (Tudalennau 3 - 

28) 
 

 
 
PAUL ORDERS 
Prif Weithredwr  
 
Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Saesneg / This document is available in English  
 



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Page 1 of 12 

CARDIFF COUNCIL  

CYNGOR CAERDYDD 
 
CABINET MEETING: 13 JANUARY 2021 
 

 
2021/22 BUDGET MODELLING UPDATE AND CONSULTATION 
REQUIREMENTS 
 
FINANCE, MODERNISATION AND PERFORMANCE 
(COUNCILLOR CHRIS WEAVER) 

AGENDA ITEM:   1 
 

  
Reason for this Report 
 
1. To provide an update on budget preparation for 2021/22, including the 

impact of the Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement 
(Provisional Settlement).    

 
2. To provide details of the consultation that will take place to inform 

Cabinet’s final Budget Proposal for 2021/22. 
 
Background 

 
3. The 2021/22 Budget Strategy Report was considered by Cabinet in 

September 2020 as part of an update to the Council’s Medium-Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP). It set out a potential budget reduction requirement 
(‘budget gap’) of £25.4M for 2021/22 and £97.2M for the period 2021/22 – 
2024/25. The budget gap reflected a combination of financial pressures 
and anticipated funding reductions. 

 
4. In the absence of indicative Welsh Government funding figures, the 

September position was based on an assumed level of general grant 
funding for 2021/22. Since then, the Provisional Settlement for 2021/22 
has provided further clarity on the funding position.  

 
5. The MTFP presented in September 2020 was set against the backdrop of 

an unprecedented period, specifically in relation to the COVID-19 
pandemic and the uncertainty resulting from BREXIT arrangements in the 
final months of 2020. As such, it has remained critical that budget 
modelling, including the impact of all external factors have been kept 
under continuous review, and updated as appropriate.  

 
6. In light of the issues set out above, and in order to ensure that consultation 

is based on the most up to date information available, this report updates 
the budget reduction requirement for 2021/22 in order to reflect the 

 

Tudalen 3

Eitem Agenda 1



Page 2 of 12 

Provisional Settlement, other emerging issues and most recent data 
modelling.  

 
Issues 
 
7. Cabinet Members have a collective duty prior to the 11th March 2021 to 

place before the Council, proposals, which if approved, would result in the 
adoption of a balanced budget for 2021/22. The public consultation 
proposed by this report will inform the preparation of Cabinet’s final draft 
budget for consideration by Council in early March 2021. 

 
Timescales 
 
8. Due to the timing of the UK Spending Round, which took place in late 

November, the Provisional Settlement was delayed until the 22nd 
December 2020. This is more than two months later than the usual 
October publication date. The Provisional Settlement is a critical factor in 
drafting the budget strategy and can significantly affect the overall 
position.   

 
9. Subject to Cabinet approval, consultation on the 2021/22 Budget will 

commence in January 2021. This is later than usual to ensure that the 
draft budget that underpins the consultation position fully reflects the 
Provisional Settlement and that the position being consulted upon is as 
accurate as possible. 

 
COVID-19 Pandemic  
 
10. The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic continues to have a significant 

financial impact on the Council. In responding to the unprecedented 
challenge of the pandemic the Council has worked with our partners to 
adapt our public services, support local businesses and workers, and to 
keep all our citizens, particularly our city’s most vulnerable citizens, our 
staff, and our communities safe. The pandemic has resulted in both 
additional expenditure pressures and reduced income generation across 
services. To date, the Welsh Government has committed £557M as part 
of a COVID Hardship Fund in 2020/21 and as at the end of November 
2020, this Council had submitted expenditure claims to Welsh 
Government of over £38M and lost income claims (covering Quarters 1 
and 2) of over £22M.  

 
11. In the context of the 2021/22 Budget Strategy, the COVID-19 pandemic 

will still need to be a major consideration in the Council’s financial planning 
assumptions. Within its draft budget, the Welsh Government has to date 
identified £766M of COVID-19 related consequential for 2021/22 
(compared to over £5Bn in 2020/21) and have so far nominally allocated 
£77M to key areas including contract tracing, support to the Bus industry 
and Free School Meals (for holiday provision in 2021/22).  
 

12. The Budget assumptions for this Council at Provisional Settlement 
assume no direct base impact of COVID-19 in 2021/22 but this will be kept 

Tudalen 4



Page 3 of 12 

under constant review as more clarity on impact and funding availability is 
understood.       

 
BREXIT Arrangements  
 
13. A second specific risk factor to draw out as context for the 2021/22 Budget 

Strategy work at this time is BREXIT and the impact of the recently agreed 
Trade Deal with the European Union.  
 

14. No specific allocations/risks have been included in respect of 
arrangements post January 1st 2021 but this will be kept under close 
scrutiny as more detail on the deal emerges and the practical implications 
of this across service delivery are understood.  

 
Provisional Local Government Settlement 

 
15. On the 22nd December 2020, the Minister for Housing and Local 

Government announced the Provisional Settlement for 2021/22. The 

Minister’s statement and key data table is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

16. The headlines of the settlement are included below: 

 

 On average, Welsh Local Authorities will receive a +3.8% increase in 

general revenue funding next financial year. 

 Individual Authority Settlements range from +2% to +5.6%. 

 Grants totalling £5.127M at an All Wales level will transfer into 

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) in 2021/22 (£3.98M Teachers Pay 

Grant and £1.1M for the Coastal Risk Management Programme). 

 There will be no ‘floor’ protection in 2021/22. 

 Settlement information is for one year only, which continues to make 

medium term planning extremely challenging. 

 

17. Cardiff will receive a +3.8% increase in Aggregate External Finance (AEF) 

in 2021/22 (£18M in cash terms after adjusting for transfers). Cardiff’s 

settlement is at the level of the Welsh average, having been impacted by 

the transitional arrangements to move to use of the mid-year population 

estimates, where growth assumptions for the City have been reduced.  

 

18. In addition to AEF, the Provisional Settlement does provide some details 

on specific revenue grant streams, with the majority continuing at existing 

(or increased) levels, although information on specific individual local 

authority allocations is still awaited. Notable increases in specific grants (at 

an all Wales level) include:  

 Social Care Workforce and Sustainability Grant increased from £40m 
to £50m 

 Support for Minority Ethnic and Gypsy, Roma, Traveller learners rises 
from £10m to £11m 

 Bus Revenue Support (Traws Cymru) rises from £3.2m to £4.4m 

 Road Safety Grant rises from £0.95m to £2m 

Tudalen 5



Page 4 of 12 

19. Cardiff’s capital settlement is a 1.62% increase in General Capital Funding 
(GCF) for 2021/22, which is £0.282M in cash terms. In addition, some 
details on an all Wales basis are included in respect of specific capital 
grants, such as £20M for the continuation of the public highways 
refurbishment grant, but as per revenue specific grants, further detail is 
awaited.  

 
20. The level of revenue funding announced in the Provisional Settlement is 

better than the planning assumption reflected in the Council’s September 
MTFP. The MTFP, which pre-dated the Spending Round, had assumed a 
potential +1.5% funding increase for 2021/22. 

 
21. Whilst the improved funding position for 2021/22 is welcome, it should be 

noted that the position for 2022/23 and beyond is much less certain. The 
UK economy will be transitioning to new arrangements post BREXIT and 
the ‘long tail’ impact of COVID-19 is still likely to be felt during 2021/22. 
These factors will no doubt have a significant impact on the next Central 
Government spending review planned during 2021 which will be a key 
determinant of medium term resource availability.   

 
Budget Modelling Update 
 
22. The Council’s MTFP undergoes regular review to ensure it reflects the 

most up to date and robust information. Updates since the last MTFP 
Report in September include the impact of: 
 

 The Provisional Settlement, announced on 22nd December 2020. 

 The Voluntary Living Wage rate announced in November 2020. 

 Announcements and updates associated with the November 2020 UK 
Spending Review, including NLW rates for 2021/22 and updated 
inflation forecasts. 

 Most recent pricing information in relation to key commissioned 
services. 

 Pupil numbers on role in September 2020 

 The need to address base pressures, evident through in year 
monitoring in some areas including: 
 

o Children’s Services  
o Adult Services 
o Legal Services 
o Out of County Education Provision 
o School Transport 

 

 Budgetary adjustments to strengthen financial resilience and manage 
risk 

 Budgetary adjustments to support key corporate priorities and ensure 
continued modernisation of service delivery. 

 
23. Taking account of the above updates, the current resource requirements 

modelled for 2021/22 are set out in the table below:  
 
 

Tudalen 6



Page 5 of 12 

Resources Required £000 £000 

Base Budget Brought Forward  656,186 

Pay Award 4,507  

Price Inflation (i) 4,000  

Financial Pressures (ii) 1,551  

Commitments, Realignments & Capital Financing (iii) 11,072  

Demographic Pressures (iv) 5,615  

Schools Growth (v) 9,135  

 35,880  

Resources Required  692,066 

 
24. A further breakdown of key resource requirements is provided below:  

 
i. Price Inflation – this includes key specific inflationary increases, 

the most significant of which is £3.275M for Adults Commissioned 
Services in Social Services. 
 

ii. Financial Pressures – this includes increased costs in relation to 
the growth of Council Tax Reduction Scheme caseloads, the impact 
of changing household waste streams experienced during COVID-
19 and a reduction in the core Sustainable Waste Grant for 
2021/22. 
   

iii. Commitments, Realignments & Capital Financing – this includes 
budget realignments totalling £5.314M, the most significant of which 
are £1.704M for Children’s Services, £1.082M for Education Out Of 
County Services and £1.033M for School Transport costs. It also 
includes £2.911M of additional commitments, including the Fire 
Service Levy at £0.389M and £2.847M of Capital Financing 
Commitments.  
 

iv. Demographic Pressures – this includes £1.605M for Adult Social 
Services, £3.150M for Children’s Social Services, £0.760M for Out 
of County Education Provision and £0.100M for Recycling and 
Neighbourhood Services.  
 

v. Schools Growth – This includes the full costs of teachers’ and 
non- teachers’ pay and pupil number growth.  

 
25. At Provisional Settlement, and assuming the same use of reserves as 

modelled in the MTFP, resources available (excluding any 2021/22 
potential increase in Council Tax levels) are as shown in the table below: 

 £000 

Aggregate External Finance 487,913 

Council Tax (2021/22 tax-base at 2020/21 prices) 187,044 

Use of Reserves 750 

Resources Available 675,707 

Tudalen 7



Page 6 of 12 

26. Taking account of Resources Available above against calculated 
Resources Required gives a budget gap at Provisional Settlement of 
£16.359M compared to £25.4M as per the MTFP published in September 
2020.   
 
Use of Reserves 
 

27. The draft budget modelling includes the use of £0.750M from reserves. 
Over-reliance on reserves as budget funding should be avoided, as they 
are a finite resource, but the sum proposed for 2021/22 is considered to 
strike an appropriate balance between supporting services next financial 
year, and the continued ability to set balanced budgets in the longer term. 
 
Council Tax  
 

28. The Council will have due regard to the level of the increase in council tax 
in 2021/22 but must balance this against the need to fund key services. 
The modelled increase assumed within the MTFP at September 2020 for 
2021/22 was 4%.   

 
29. A 4% increase would generate net additional income of £6.115M after 

associated increases in the Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS). As 
council tax represents just over a quarter of the Council’s overall funding, 
an increase of 4% is approximately equivalent to a 1% increase in the 
Council’s overall budget. 

 
30. The CTRS will continue to be funded on all Wales basis at the same level 

provided within the Revenue Support Grant in 2014/15 (£244M nationally). 
This means that costs associated with Council Tax uplifts and changing 
caseloads must be funded by the Council. Whilst a 1% council tax 
increase generates additional income of £1.870M for the Council, it also 
costs £342,000 in additional CTRS requirements, thus reducing net 
additional income to £1.528M. In other words, 18% of any Council Tax 
increase is required to support costs associated with the CTRS.  

 
31. In overall terms, if the modelled Council Tax increase is factored into 

available resources at this stage, this would leave a savings requirement 
of £10.244M. The final level of Council Tax agreed by Council will mean 
this requirement could increase or decrease as part of finalising the 
budget strategy for 2021/22.  

 
Financial Planning and Strategic Context 
 

Budget Savings 
 

32. The Council has identified over £220M in savings over the past decade.  
 

33. In the context of a more positive funding settlement, target savings for 
2021/22 have been reviewed in order to ensure that they minimise impact 
on service delivery, especially given the pressures from external factors 
such as COVID-19 and Brexit, and that they are deliverable and 

Tudalen 8



Page 7 of 12 

appropriate in the context of the Council’s financial resilience, both next 
year and over the medium term.  

 
34. The savings target at Provisional Settlement is currently estimated to be 

£10.244M (after allowing for a modelled Council Tax increase1).  This 
target will be met by efficiency savings across both Schools’ and other 
Council services’ budget heads.  

 
35. Efficiency savings are defined as achieving the same output (or more) for 

less resource, with no significant impact on the resident / customer. 
Significant work has already progressed to identify efficiency savings 
across Services that can deliver against target requirements. 

 
36. In line with the Council’s September 2020 Budget Strategy Report, in 

order to improve the deliverability of savings and maximise the chances of 
securing full year savings in 2021/22, efficiency proposals that do not 
require a policy decision will be implemented in the current year wherever 
possible.  

 
37. In terms of the split between Individual School Budgets (ISB) and other 

Council services, it is proposed at this stage to restrict the schools 
efficiency target to 1%. This would contribute £2.590M to the overall 
target.  

 
38. The remaining £7.654M would then be targeted at other Council services 

and would include actions such as:  
 

 Review of staffing arrangements   

 Reductions in premises costs   

 Reductions in external spend  

 Use of new technology  

 Budget review / alignment 

 Income opportunities  

 Re-design and changes in the operating model for services  
 

39. As noted above, there has been a continued focus on exploring income 
opportunities however, given the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, such 
opportunities are clearly more limited than in previous years.  

 
40. Delivery of savings targets identified will result in a balanced budget, 

although clearly this is based on current modelling assumptions. The draft 
nature of the budget modelling needs to be emphasised and the 
expenditure and income assumptions underlying the budget position are 
continually being reviewed as part of normal budget preparation work.  
Examples of this include confirmation required in relation to specific grant 
arrangements in certain areas, confirmation of the NJC and Teachers pay 
awards, which are yet to be finalised for 2021/22 and consideration of 
feedback received in respect of consultation. 

 
 

                                            
1 As per Paragraph 31 the final agreed level of Council Tax could increase / decrease the level of savings required  

Tudalen 9



Page 8 of 12 

Allocation of Resources 
 

41. It is important to allocate scarce resources in line with strategic priorities, 
having regard to their impact on future generations. Any proposals for 
investment and / or savings are framed by the priorities and objectives set 
out in Capital Ambition and the Council’s Corporate Plan.  The Corporate 
Plan is being developed alongside the budget in the context of meeting the 
immediate and medium term challenges presented by Covid-19, as well as 
the role of the Council in leading a city-wide programme of post-pandemic 
recovery and renewal.  This will include a focus on: 

 
i.           Leading the city’s economic recovery, doing all we can to support 

businesses and workers and delivering the Council’s capital 
investment programme in major projects, housing, transport and 
schools. 

 
ii.          Supporting the people who have been hit hardest by the 

pandemic – particularly our most vulnerable citizens and those in 
our most deprived communities – and the services upon which 
they rely. 

 
iii.         Rebuilding the services that have been closed or severely 

restricted by the pandemic, including the city’s major events 
programme, cultural and tourist venues, leisure centres, and 
public transport. 

 
iv.         Delivering the One Planet Cardiff programme, including 

investments in cycling, walking and public transport; renewable 
energy generation; increased tree planting; and flood risk 
management.  

 
v.          Continuing to modernise our services, building on the service 

innovations and increased use of technology introduced as part 
of the Council’s pandemic operating model. 

 
Medium Term Planning Implications 

 
42.  Whilst the position for 2021/22 is more positive than initially assumed, the 

Council must continue to strengthen financial resilience and build a robust 
position from which to move forward. This must include ensuring that all 
savings newly proposed for 2021/22 are at a realistic and manageable 
level and that base budgets adequately reflect rising demand and 
inescapable pressure. There will also be a need to adequately resource 
service growth and modernisation, in order to help the Council approach 
the uncertainties of the medium term. 

 
43. Whilst the focus of this report is the annual budget proposals for 2021/22, 

work is ongoing to revisit the assumptions within the MTFP and the detail 
of this will be reported along with the Council’s other financial strategy 
documents, as part of the final 2021/22 Budget Report. 

 
 

Tudalen 10



Page 9 of 12 

Consultation and Engagement 
 
44. Budget consultation is an opportunity to understand what is important to 

our stakeholders and to encourage their involvement in shaping Council 

services. Consultation in respect of the 2021/22 Budget, subject to 

Cabinet approval will begin immediately following Cabinet consideration 

on the 13th January 2021 and run until 10th February 2021. The results of 

the consultation will be key in supporting Cabinet as they prepare their 

final 2021/22 Budget Proposal for consideration by Council in March 

2021.   

 

45. The 2021/22 Budget Consultation period will take place when the whole 

of Wales is at its highest alert level for the Coronavirus Pandemic, 

meaning that people are only able to meet with members of their 

household or support bubble.  As such, no face-to-face engagement can 

take place, and the focus of promoting the consultation has to be done 

electronically. Key points to note for this year’s consultation are:  

 

 The consultation document will be available for online completion on 

the Council’s website. 

 A co-ordinated social media and press campaign, and partner 

involvement will seek to ensure citywide engagement: 

 Links to the consultation will be made available on the Council’s 

corporate social media accounts, with posts targeting localised 

community groups across the city, and targeted advertising aimed at 

groups with a typically lower response rates. 

 Links to the survey will also be shared with community groups, such 

as faith groups, community councils and the Cardiff Youth Council, 

and partners, including members of the PSB, to be shared with their 

contacts. 

 The consultation will also be promoted to Council staff via the intranet 

and Staff Information alerts via email and on DigiGov. 

 The Council will also work with the Access Forum, and relevant groups 

including the Deaf Hub and RNIB to make the survey available to 

those who may have difficulty accessing or completing the online link. 

 Findings from the most recent Ask Cardiff survey, conducted in 

October & November 2020 with 4,715 responses, will also be used to 

inform the Council’s corporate plan and budget 

 

46. Further opportunities for engagement, including with the Schools Budget 

Forum and Scrutiny Committees will also take place during the coming 

months. The need to engage effectively with the Council’s own staff, both 

directly and through their trade unions will remain a high priority 

throughout the budget setting process. Stakeholder engagement 

opportunities are a valuable way of informing the budget process and 

Cabinet’s final budget proposal. 

 
47. The Budget consultation details are attached at Appendix 2.  

Tudalen 11



Page 10 of 12 

 
48. In addition to public consultation where there are ongoing requirements for 

internal staff and trade union consultation, specifically in relation to 
ongoing delivery of efficiency savings,  these will continue to be included 
as part of the ongoing employee engagement process.     

 
Employee Engagement 
 
49. Through the Council’s Trade Union Pre Cabinet meeting, trade unions 

have been consulted in advance on this report and the likely impact on 
employees, particularly where posts are at risk of redundancy. Under the 
law relating to unfair dismissal, all proposals to make redundancies must 
involve reasonable consultation with the affected employees and their 
trade unions. It remains likely that there will be redundancies within the 
Council’s workforce during the financial year commencing April 2021, 
notwithstanding every effort being made to avoid them. 
 

50. During the period of the consultation, trade unions and employees will 
have the opportunity to comment on proposals that may affect them. Once 
the final budget is approved by Council, any employees affected will be 
supported. At that point, eligible employees will be given the opportunity to 
take voluntary redundancy or to access the redeployment process, which 
provide employees with a period of twelve weeks to look for alternative 
employment.  

 
51. Whilst the exact number of proposed redundancies is not known at this 

stage, some are likely to occur. This will mean that following Cabinet on 13 

January 2021 and in accordance with the Trade Union and Labour 

Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992, a Section 188 Notice will be formally 

issued to the trade unions, related to the budget and potential 

redundancies. The proposed redundancies and the issue of the Section 

188 notice is related to the overall reduction in staff numbers required. 

 
52. Formal consultation with employees and trade unions will take place as 

part of the budget preparation work and views and comments about ways 

of avoiding, reducing and mitigating the consequences of the numbers of 

staff being made redundant e.g. by redeployment, will be considered. 

 
Reason for Recommendations 
 
53. To issue the 2021/22 Budget Consultation and to provide stakeholders 

with the opportunity, through a range of mechanisms, to provide feedback 
to Cabinet. In addition, to note that the consultation will commence on the 
13th January 2021 and run until the 10th February 2021.  

 
Financial Implications 
 
54. The financial implications are as described in the detail of the Report. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 12



Page 11 of 12 

Legal Implications  
 

55. Specific legal obligations relating to the setting of the budget and 
consultation are set out within the body of this report. 
 

56. The obligation to consult can arise in some cases from express statutory 
provisions and in other cases from common law. In all cases, the 
consultation must be undertaken in such a way as to be meaningful and 
genuine. The results of the consultation must feed into the process for 
consideration and finalisation of budget decisions. 
 

57. The Council has public sector duties under the Equality Act 2010 which 
require it, in exercising its functions, to have due regard to the need to (1) 
eliminate unlawful discrimination (2) advance equality of opportunity and 
(3) foster good relations between persons with and without protected 
characteristics. For example, protected characteristics include race, sex, 
gender, age, religion. In order to be sure that the Council complies with its 
public sector equality duties, it is essential that Equality Impact 
Assessments are undertaken where appropriate in relation to specific 
budget proposals, that these are informed by the results of the 
consultation, and that any impact is taken into account in the decision-
making on the budget. 
 

58. The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires the 
Council to consider how the proposals will contribute towards meeting its 
well-being objectives (set out in the Corporate Plan).  Members must also 
be satisfied that the proposals comply with the sustainable development 
principle, which requires that the needs of the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. 

 
HR Implications 

 
59. The Human Resource implications are as described in the detail of the 

Report. 
 
Property Implications 
 
60. There are no property implications arising directly from this report. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Cabinet is recommended to 
 
(1) Note the updated Budget Position for 2021/22 at Provisional Settlement 

Stage. 

  
(2) Agree the proposed approach to Budget Consultation for 2021/22 and 

subject to that agreement note that the formal budget consultation will 

commence on the 13th January 2021 and run until 10th February 2021. 

The results of the consultation process will then be considered by 

Cabinet in preparing their final 2021/22 budget proposal. 

 

Tudalen 13



Page 12 of 12 

(3) Note that the Chief Executive as Head of Paid Service will be issuing all 

necessary statutory and non-statutory employment consultation in 

respect of the staffing implications of the proposals. 

 

SENIOR RESPONSIBLE OFFICER Chris Lee 
Corporate Director Resources & 
Section 151 Officer 
 

7 January 2021 
 

 
The following appendices are attached:  
 
Appendix 1 – Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement 2021/22 – 

Statement and Key Data Table 
Appendix 2 – Budget Consultation 2021/22 Details  
 
 
The following background papers have been taken into account 
 

 Budget Strategy Report 2021/22 and the Medium Term  

 Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) of Cardiff Councils 2021/22 Budget 
Savings Proposals 

 WG Provisional Local Government Financial Settlement 2021/22 

Tudalen 14



Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol 
Minister for Housing and Local Government  
 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

 
Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  

0300 0604400 
Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru   

Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales 
 

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

Ein cyf/Our ref: MA/JJ/4091/20 
 
To:  
Leaders of County and County Borough Councils in Wales 
 
Copied to:  
Chief Executives and Directors of Finance, County and County Borough Councils in Wales 
Chief Executive and Director of Finance, Welsh Local Government Association 
 
 

22 December 2020 
 
Dear Colleagues 
 
Today I am announcing details of the Provisional Local Government Revenue and Capital 
Settlements for 2021-22 (the Settlement) for county and county borough councils in Wales 
through a Cabinet Written Statement.  This is attached for your information. 
 
As set out in yesterday’s draft budget the Welsh Government’s funding priorities continue to 
be health and local government services.  My announcement outlines my intention to set 
local government core revenue funding for 2021-22 at £4.651 billion.  This means, after 
adjusting for transfers, overall core funding for local government in 2021-22 will increase by 
3.8 per cent on a like-for-like basis compared to the current year.  While I know local 
government has been facing significant pressures, particularly arising from the COVID-19 
pandemic, I hope that this increase, building as it does on a significantly improved 
settlement in 2020-21, enables you to continue to support and deliver critical and valued 
local services.  In setting the overall Settlement at this level the Government has responded 
to the negative impact of the pandemic on Non Domestic Rate (NDR) collection.  The 
baseline Settlement increase of £176m reflects a larger increase in the Revenue Support 
Grant (RSG) to compensate for the fall in NDR.  It also accounts for the impact of freezing 
the NDR multiplier.  After adjusting for transfers into the Settlement, this equates to an 
increase of £172 million in Settlement funding, compared with 2020-21. 
 
The Minister for Finance and Trefnydd was clear in the draft budget that one of the hard 
choices we have faced in setting our spending plans for next year is our approach to public 
sector pay.  The reality is that we did not receive any additional funding through the Barnett 
formula to provide for public sector wide pay awards next year given the UK Government’s 
decision to pause public sector pay rises, with the exception of the NHS and those on the 
lowest wages.  The implications of pay awards in 2021-22 will therefore need to be 
accommodated within your budget planning in the light of this Settlement.  Our decisions in 
the budget, target as much support as we can to health and local government to support 
pressure in frontline services focusing on schools and social services. 
 

Tudalen 15

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Julie.James@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Julie.James@gov.Wales
c721247
Text Box
Appendix 1a



Whilst we did not receive any additional funding from the UK Government for public sector 
pay, in determining the distribution of funding across authorities for the Settlement, we have 
recognised the decisions made on the 2020/21 teachers' pay deal and the commitment 
made by local government to fund this deal by directing funding into the schools part of the 
formula.  We are also continuing to provide funding for our proposals for new eligibility 
criteria for free school meals, given the continued rollout of Universal Credit by the UK 
Government. 
 
Through this Settlement, we are continuing to provide £4.8 million for authorities to deliver 
additional discretionary rates relief for local businesses and other ratepayers to respond to 
specific local issues. 
 
In line with the Government’s focus on countering the effects of poverty, we remain 
committed to protecting vulnerable and low-income households from any reduction in 
support under the Council Tax Reduction Schemes, despite the shortfall in the funding 
transferred by the UK Government following its abolition of Council Tax Benefit. We will 
continue to maintain full entitlements under our Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) for 
2021-22 and are again providing £244 million for CTRS in the Settlement in recognition of 
this. 
 
Alongside the Settlement we are continuing to provide funding to support local government 
to waive fees for child burials.  This shared commitment ensures a fair and consistent 
approach across Wales. 
 
I am not minded to provide for a funding floor for this year given the increased settlement for 
2020-21 and the proposed allocations I am announcing today for 2021-22.  I have 
accordingly allocated all the funding available up front. 
 
A wide range of services of course have been significantly impacted by the pandemic.  As 
the Finance Minister’s statement on the budget made clear, we recognise the need to 
continue to provide funding to support your, and others response to the pandemic.  This will 
be considered separately and does not form part of this Settlement. 
 
General capital funding for 2021-22 will continue to be set at £198 million.  Included within 
this amount is £20 million for the continuation of the public highways refurbishment grant, 
including support for active travel; £54 million of historic baselined general capital grant; and 
the continuation of an additional £35 million of general capital grant, which was announced 
as part of the 2019-20 and 2020-21 budgets.  This additional £35 million will enable you to 
start to respond to our joint priority of decarbonisation including for housing and economic 
recovery following Covid-19. 
 
We have discussed, before, our shared recognition of the need to invest in the supply of 
housing.  Investing in social housing should minimise the pressures on local authority 
budgets and on homelessness services.  Investment in housing can also support the Welsh 
economy and local economies.  I hope that this Settlement, capital and revenue, can 
support you in increasing the scale and pace of housebuilding across Wales. 
 
The draft Local Government Finance Report and additional tables containing details of the 
Settlement by individual authority are also being published on the Welsh Government 
website.  These tables include the individual authority allocations of Aggregate External 
Finance (AEF), comprising RSG and redistributed NDR.  As we have discussed through the 
Finance Sub Group, we are also providing information on revenue and capital grants which 
are planned for 2021-22.  This information will be further updated for the final settlement. 

Tudalen 16



 
The delay in the publication of the Settlement has enabled us to draw on the latest tax-base 
figures for 2021-22, meaning that there should be no change between provisional and final 
settlements as a result of updates to the tax base. 
 
This Settlement provides you with a stable platform for planning your budgets for the 
forthcoming financial year.  I fully appreciate the pressures local government is facing and 
am committed to protecting local government, particularly at this difficult and challenging 
time.  This is as good a Settlement as I can offer and one that should help to alleviate some 
of the pressures that you had been anticipating.  While I can’t guarantee that there will be 
no changes between the provisional and final settlements, due to the financial uncertainty 
that we currently face, I can assure you that I do not intend making any significant changes 
to the methodology or the data underpinning the distribution of this Settlement. 
 
My announcement today launches a 7-week period of formal consultation on the Settlement 
for 2021-22.  I would be grateful if you could ensure your response arrives no later than 
Tuesday, 9 February 2021.  All responses to this consultation should be sent to: 
 
Simon Edwards: LGFPSettlement@gov.wales. 
 
Comments are invited about the effects (whether positive or adverse) the proposed 
Settlement would have on opportunities for people to use the Welsh language and on 
treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English language.  In addition, we 
invite comments on whether the proposed Settlement could be formulated or revised to 
have positive effects, or decrease adverse effects, on opportunities for people to use the 
Welsh language and on treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English 
language. 
 
The Welsh Government intends to publish a summary of the responses.  Normally, the 
name and address (or part of the address) of each respondent are published along with the 
response.  If you do not wish to be identified as the author of your response, please ensure 
you state this explicitly in your response. 
 
Copies of responses may be placed in the Welsh Government’s library.  If you wish your 
comments to remain confidential, please make this clear in your reply.  This will be 
considered in light of our obligations under the Freedom of Information Act.  The Welsh 
Government will consider all responses received by the due date before the final 
determination is made and published. 
 
Local authorities are reminded of the requirement to comply with the general equality duties 
set out in the Equality Act 2010, and also the specific equality duties where applicable.  The 
equality impacts of budgetary options should be assessed and inform any final decisions. 
 
Authorities also need to take account of their duties under the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Welsh language standards in preparing plans for 
2021-22. 
 
This Settlement provides you with the information you need to plan your budgets for 2021-
22 and to consider how best you engage with your local communities in formulating your 
proposals and making budget decisions. 
 
 
 

Tudalen 17

mailto:LGFPSettlement@gov.wales


Yours sincerely  
 

 
 
Julie James AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Tai a Llywodraeth Leol 
Minister for Housing and Local Government 

Tudalen 18



Welsh Local Government Revenue Settlement 2021-2022 Appendix 1b

Provisional

Table 1a: Change in Aggregate External Finance (AEF), adjusted for transfers, by Unitary Authority

£'000s

Isle of Anglesey 101,369 104,825 3.4% 18

Gwynedd 188,409 194,793 3.4% 19

Conwy 161,181 166,906 3.6% 17

Denbighshire 153,089 158,632 3.6% 16

Flintshire 199,267 206,778 3.8% 14

Wrexham 184,569 188,856 2.3% 21

Powys 184,554 191,897 4.0% 8

Ceredigion 107,545 109,658 2.0% 22

Pembrokeshire 172,502 179,387 4.0% 7

Carmarthenshire 274,355 284,820 3.8% 13

Swansea 339,445 352,642 3.9% 10

Neath Port Talbot 227,198 236,680 4.2% 6

Bridgend 203,540 212,192 4.3% 5

The Vale of Glamorgan 160,455 168,316 4.9% 2

Rhondda Cynon Taf 389,403 404,375 3.8% 11

Merthyr Tydfil 96,973 101,476 4.6% 3

Caerphilly 283,708 292,367 3.1% 20

Blaenau Gwent 116,112 120,361 3.7% 15

Torfaen 140,308 146,340 4.3% 4

Monmouthshire 97,673 101,483 3.9% 9

Newport 228,000 240,796 5.6% 1

Cardiff 469,913 487,913 3.8% 12

Total unitary authorities 4,479,570 4,651,494 3.8%

* The published AEF for 2020-21 final Aggregate External Finance is subject to a number of adjustments set out in Table 6

Unitary Authority
2020-21 final Aggregate 

External Finance*

2021-22 provisional 

Aggregate External Finance

Percentage 

difference
Rank

T
udalen 19



T
udalen 20



Appendix 2 – Budget Consultation 2021/22 
 

Budget Consultation 2021/22 
 
Cardiff Council provides a wide range of essential services to the city.  Some of these 
are easy to see – street lighting, road maintenance, waste and recycling collections, 
schools and libraries.  Others are less visible, though vitally important, such as 
providing care and support to vulnerable people of all ages. 
 
At the beginning of each year, the Council sets out a budget for the next financial year 
that details how much money we will be able to spend on each of the services that the 
council provides. 
 
In 2020/21, the Council’s budget was £656 million, with the majority of this spent on 

schools (£254 million) and Social Services (£182 million).  Most of the money the 

Council receives comes through a grant from the Welsh Government (72%), with the 

remaining 28% coming from Council tax, without which many important services 

valued by residents would be lost. 

The cost of delivering services rises each year. This is driven by increased demand 
as the city’s population grows, from the damaging consequences of poverty and 
deprivation on people’s lives, and from pressures like inflation.   

 
The increasing costs of providing these services and the growing demand pressures 

leaves the Council facing a budget gap which it has to bridge if services are to be 

maintained. For 2021/22, the Council must address a budget gap of £16.4 million. This 

means the council will have to find £16.4m through a combination of efficiency savings 

and consideration of council tax, in order to protect frontline services while allowing 

some opportunity to invest in key areas. 

The Impact of Covid-19  
 
The Covid-19 pandemic has had a major impact on all Council services.  In responding 
to the unprecedented challenge of the pandemic, the Council has worked with our 
partners to adapt our public services, support local businesses and workers, and to 
keep all our citizens, particularly our city’s most vulnerable citizens, our staff, and our 
communities safe.  
 
Between April and November 2020 alone, the Council incurred an additional £38m of 

costs due to significant pressures on some of our services. In addition, the lockdown 

and continued social distancing measures have seen the Council lose £22 million in 

income over six-months. 

These additional costs include a range of measures to support our communities 
during Covid-19, for example: 
 

•     The purchase of PPE for frontline staff; 
•    The provision of free school meals to children and IT equipment for children    

from low-income families to enable them to home-school; 
•     Providing financial support to Care Homes and Domiciliary Care Providers to 

help them to continue to operate safely during the pandemic and; 

Tudalen 21



Appendix 2 – Budget Consultation 2021/22 
 

•    Supporting community facilities, such as theatres and leisure centres which 

had to close due to the crisis, so losing income 

The full financial impact of the Covid-19 crisis is not yet fully understood, so it remains 
difficult to predict the course of the pandemic and its impact on services, and on 
Council finances, over the year ahead. 
 
It is clear that the direct impact of the pandemic will be felt well into the next financial 
year.  It is also clear that the indirect consequences of the health and economic crisis 
caused by the pandemic will be felt for years to come. 
 

Recovery and Renewal: Priorities for 2021/22 
 
Over the months ahead the Council and its partners must continue to focus on 
managing the pandemic and doing all we can to keep our citizens and communities 
safe. 
 
However, as we look towards the spring and summer, and to recovery and renewal, 

we want to hear where you think we should be placing our focus, and investment, so 

that we can build a greener, fairer, more prosperous city. 

Our priorities will be: 
 
1)     To lead the city’s economic recovery, doing all we can to support businesses 

and workers and delivering our ambitious capital investment programme, 
including major regeneration projects in Cardiff Bay and the city centre; our  circa 
£280m school investment programme, and our commitment to build 2000 new 
Council homes.  

 
2) Supporting the people who have been hit hardest by the pandemic – 

particularly our youngest, oldest and most vulnerable citizens, and those in our 
most deprived communities – and the services upon which they rely, including 
care for vulnerable children and older people; people suffering poor mental 
health; those who are homeless and rough sleeping.  

 
3)     Rebuilding the services that have been closed or severely restricted by the 

pandemic, including our programme of major events, cultural and tourist venues, 

leisure centres, and public transport. 

4)     Continuing to modernise our services, building on the transformational use of 
technology throughout the pandemic. 

 
5)     Our One Planet Cardiff programme, delivering a green recovery for Cardiff, 

including investments in cycling, walking and public transport; increasing the 
energy we generate from renewables; increased tree planting, and improving our 
flood defences. 

 

 
 

Tudalen 22



Appendix 2 – Budget Consultation 2021/22 
 

Our Priorities: 
 
Here we have outlined some of the services the Council delivers that can support the 
city’s economy and our communities as we emerge from the Covid-19 crisis: 
 
Your views on where we should prioritise limited resources are very important to us. 
 
Here we have outlined some of the services the Council delivers to support our 
economy and our communities as we emerge from the Covid-19 crisis. We would like 
you to rank your top three priorities, dragging each option into the green box on the 
right, with your highest priority at the top. 
 

 1  2  3 

Leading an economic recovery through 
supporting businesses and workers, and 
through delivering our major regeneration 
schemes  

        

 
Investing in our schools and improving 
educational attainment, and supporting 
children and young people. 

        

 

Tackling the city’s housing crisis by 
building 2000 new Council houses, and 
delivering our new homelessness model 
to end rough sleeping. 

        

 

Rebuilding Cardiff’s cultural scene post-
Covid-19 (including arts, theatre, live 
music, etc.) 

        

 

Keeping our streets and communities 
clean 

        

 

Reducing congestion and air pollution 
through investing in active and sustainable 
travel 

        

 

Keeping our communities safe and 
tackling anti-social behaviour 

        

 

Supporting vulnerable children and 
families through our care system  

        

 

Investing in our parks and open spaces          

 

Tudalen 23



Appendix 2 – Budget Consultation 2021/22 
 

Tackling the climate emergency through 
delivering our One Planet Cardiff strategy 

        

 

Helping older people live in their own 
homes for as long as possible 

        

 

Please tell us why your highest priority is important to you 
________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________ 

 

Our Priorities: 
 
We would also like you to tell us your lowest ranked priority. Just click and drag into 

the green box on the right. 

Leading an economic recovery through 
supporting businesses and workers, and 
through delivering our major regeneration 
schemes  

   

 
Investing in our schools and improving 
educational attainment, and supporting 
children and young people. 

   

 

Tackling the city’s housing crisis by 
building 2000 new Council houses, and 
delivering our new homelessness model 
to end rough sleeping. 

   

 

Rebuilding Cardiff’s cultural scene post-
Covid-19 (including arts, theatre, live 
music, etc.) 

   

 

Keeping our streets and communities 
clean 

   

 

Reducing congestion and air pollution 
through investing in active and sustainable 
travel 

   

 

Keeping our communities safe and 
tackling anti-social behaviour 

   

 

Supporting vulnerable children and 
families through our care system  

   

 

Tudalen 24



Appendix 2 – Budget Consultation 2021/22 
 

Investing in our parks and open spaces     

 

Tackling the climate emergency through 
delivering our One Planet Cardiff strategy 

   

 

Helping older people live in their own 
homes for as long as possible 

   

 

Please tell us why your lowest priority is least important to you 

_____________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Do you have any other comments? 
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

 About You 

 

 What was your age on your last birthday?  

   Under 16    35-44    65-74 

   16-24    45-54    75+ 

   25-34    55-64    Prefer not to say 

 

   Do you identify as Trans? 
   Yes    No    Prefer to self-describe    Prefer not to say 

 

           Do any children live in your household? 

   No children 

   Yes, under 5 years old (pre-school) 

   Yes, aged 5 - 11 (primary school) 

   Yes, aged 11 - 16 (secondary school) 

   Yes, aged 16 - 18 in full-time education, or working 

   Yes, aged 16 - 18 but not in full time education or working 

 

 

 Please provide your postcode below to allow us to more accurately pinpoint respondents’ views and needs by area:- 

 _____________ 

 Are you…? 

   Female    Male    Other    Prefer not to say 

 Which of the following best describes what you are doing at present? 

   Working full time (30+ hours per week)    On a zero hour contract 

   Working part time (less than 30 hours per week)    Permanently sick or disabled person 

   In full time education    Wholly retired from work 

   On a government training scheme    Looking after home 

   Unemployed - Registered Job Seeker    Caring for a child or adult 

   Unemployed - Unregistered but seeking work    Other 

Tudalen 25



Appendix 2 – Budget Consultation 2021/22 
 

 Which of the following best describes your housing tenure? 

   Owned outright    Rented from a Housing Association 

   Owned with a mortgage    Private rented 

   Rented from the Local Authority    Other 

 

 Are you or a member of your household:  

  You  A member of your household  

 Currently serving in the armed forces        

 

 An armed forces service leaver (veteran)      

 

 

 Do you identify as a disabled person?  

    Yes    No    Prefer not to say 

 

 Please tick any of the following that apply to you: 
   Deaf/ Deafened/ Hard of hearing    Mobility impairment 
   Mental health difficulties    Long-standing illness or health condition (e.g. 

cancer, diabetes, or asthma) 
   Learning impairment/ difficulties    Prefer not to say 
   Visual impairment      Other 
   Wheelchair user       

 

 Do you care, unpaid, for a friend or family member who due to illness, disability, a mental health problem or an 
addiction cannot cope without your support? 

   Yes    No 

 

 Do you regard yourself as belonging to any particular religion? 

   No, no religion 

   Buddhist 

   Christian (Including Church in Wales, Catholic, Protestant and all other Christian denominations) 

   Hindu 

   Jewish 

   Muslim 

   Sikh 

   Other 

   Prefer not to answer 

 

 How would you describe your sexual orientation? 

   Bisexual    Gay Man    Other 

   Gay Woman/ Lesbian    Heterosexual/ Straight    Prefer not to answer 

 

 

 Do you consider yourself to be Welsh?  

   Yes    No 

 

 What is your ethnic group?  
Where the term ‘British’ is used, this refers to any of the four home nations of Wales, England, Northern Ireland and 
Scotland, or any combination of these. 

   White - Welsh/English/Scottish/Northern Irish/British 

   White - Irish 

   White - Gypsy or Irish Traveller 

   White - Any other white background (please specify) 

   Mixed/Multiple Ethnic Groups - White & Asian 

   Mixed/Multiple Ethnic Groups - White and Black Caribbean 

Tudalen 26



Appendix 2 – Budget Consultation 2021/22 
 

   Mixed/Multiple Ethnic Groups - White and Black African 

   Mixed/Multiple Ethnic Groups - Any other (please specify) 

   Asian/Asian Welsh/British - Chinese 

   Asian/Asian Welsh/British – Pakistani 

   Asian/Asian Welsh/British - Bangladeshi 

   Asian/Asian Welsh/British - Indian 

   Asian/Asian Welsh/British - Any other (please specify) 

   Black/African/Caribbean/Black Welsh/British - African 

   Black/African/Caribbean/Black Welsh/British – Caribbean  

   Black/African/Caribbean/Black Welsh/British - Any other (please specify) 

   Arab 

   Any other ethnic group (please specify) 

   Prefer not to say 

 

 Please specify 
 ________________________________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________ 

 

 Are you are interested in taking part in further consultations from Cardiff Council? 
   Yes, I would like to Join the Citizens’ Panel and be contacted about other Cardiff Council consultations 
   No 

 

 Email  

 

 

 

 Please provide your contact details below.   
 Name  ___________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________ 

 

 Phone _______________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________ 

 

 The information that you provide in completing this form will be treated as confidential, in line with the 
requirements of the Data Protection Act 2018 and the General Data Protection Principles. 
 
Any data supplied by you on this form will be processed in accordance with Data Protection Act 
requirements and in supplying it you consent to the Council processing the data for the purpose for 
which it is supplied.  All personal information provided will be treated in the strictest confidence and will 
only be used by the Council or disclosed to others for a purpose permitted by law. 
 
If you wish to withdraw consent at any time, please email consultation@cardiff.gov.uk For further 
information on how we process your personal data please refer to our Privacy Policy - or contact the 
Data Protection Officer, Room 357, County Hall, CF10 4UW, email:  dataprotection@cardiff.gov.uk 

Tudalen 27



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	1 Diweddariad Modelu Cyllideb 2021/22 a Gofynion Ymgynghori
	Cabinet 13 Jan 2021 Budget consult App 1a
	Cabinet 13 Jan 2021 Budget consult App 1b
	Cabinet 13 Jan 2021 Budget consult App 2




